

MINUTES

COMBINED MEETING OF COUNCIL

February 24, 2020 at 9:30 AM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER

PRESENT: Mayor N. Nenshi

Councillor G.C. Carra Councillor G. Chahal Councillor S. Chu

Councillor D. Colley-Urquhart

Councillor J. Davison Councillor P. Demong Councillor J. Farkas Councillor D. Farrell Councillor J. Gondek Councillor R. Jones

Councillor S. Keating (Remote Participation)

Councillor J. Magliocca Councillor W. Sutherland Councillor E. Woolley

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager D. Duckworth

City Solicitor and General Counsel J. Floen

A/General Manager K. Black General Manager S. Dalgleish Chief Financial Officer C. Male Assistant City Solicitor D. Jakal Deputy City Clerk T. Mowrey A/City Clerk S. Muscoby Legislative Advisor L. Gibb Legislative Advisor J. Palaschuk

8.2 OTHER REPORTS AND POSTPONEMENTS FOR PUBLIC HEARING

8.2.1 New Policy: Calgary—Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9), PUD2020-0047



A revised page 4 was distributed with respect to Report PUD2020-0047.

The Public Hearing was called and the following people addressed Council with respect to Bylaws 13P2020:

- 1. Jaymal Ruparell
- 2. Jonathan Ryder

Moved by Councillor Carra

Seconded by Councillor Gondek

That with respect to Report PUD2020-0047, the following be adopted: That Council:

- 1. Hold a Public Hearing at the 2020 February 24 Combined Meeting of Council;
- Give FIRST READING to Proposed Bylaw 13P2020, the proposed Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan;
- WITHHOLD second and third readings of Proposed Bylaw 13P2020 until Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan has been approved by the Calgary Metropolitan Region Board, then return to Council for SECOND and THIRD READING;
- Direct Administration to submit the proposed Calgary—Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan to the Calgary Metropolitan Region Board for review; and
- Direct Administration to complete any consequential amendments to the Belvedere Area Structure Plan and the Rocky View/Calgary Intermunicipal Development Plan and report back no later than Q4 2020.

MOTION CARRIED

That Bylaw 13P2020 be introduced and read a first time.

MOTION CARRIED

Moved by Councillor Carra

Seconded by Councillor Gondek

That Bylaw 13P2020 be amended, as follows:

Section 2.1: General Policies (Page 18) Remove policies 16, 17 and 18 and renumbered policies 19-31 accordingly to be policies 16-28.

- Increased attention should be given to architectural materials and features on the façades of buildings that face the Interface Street and Crossroads.
- Building façades greater than 30 m long should suggest a pattern of narrow storefronts or units.
- Weather-protective elements for publicly accessible spaces on private lands should be included in the overall building design, especially for those buildings that are next to a transit stop.

Section 2.2: Character Area 1: The Nodes (page 20). Add the deleted policies as policy 9, 10 and 11. And renumbered policies 9-19 accordingly to be policies 12-22.

- Increased attention should be given to architectural materials and features on the façades of buildings that face the Interface Street and Crossroads.
- Building façades greater than 30 m long should suggest a pattern of narrow storefronts or units.
- Weather-protective elements for publicly accessible spaces on private lands should be included in the overall building design, especially for those buildings that are next to a transit stop.

MOTION CARRIED

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to recommend approval of the *Calgary–Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan* (The Plan), which was jointly developed by The City of Calgary (Calgary) and City of Chestermere (Chestermere). The Plan is the result of coordination and collaboration by staff from both municipalities (Project Team). The vision, core ideas and policies in The Plan support an attractive and unique interface between Calgary and Chestermere.

The Plan (Attachment 1) provides for future intermunicipal collaboration and a long-term common vision and framework for development of approximately 102 hectares (252 acres) of lands along the common boundary between Calgary and Chestermere. Specifically, the policy area extends 150 metres east and west of Range Road 284/116 Street E/Conrich Road (Interface Street) between future alignments of 8 Avenue NE and Peigan Trail SE.

The Plan will be considered by Calgary and Chestermere councils. After the respective public hearing at each municipality, The Plan will be submitted to the Calgary Metropolitan Regional Board for approval. Once a decision is rendered, The Plan will return to Calgary and Chestermere councils for final approval. The Calgary Planning Commission provided input on The Plan during a closed session on 2019 December 5. The Plan was also presented to Chestermere Council in a closed session (equivalent to the Committee of the Whole) on 2019 December 17 for their information and input.

The Plan represents a unique approach to Intermunicipal Development Plans. The Plan includes high-level policy to support further collaboration and coordination between Calgary and Chestermere, and to guide the completion of studies required to achieve the vision for the plan area. The Plan also includes detailed policies to allow for consistency in the plan area and to address differences in policies and processes between the two municipalities.

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION:

That with respect to Report PUD2020-0047, the following be adopted:

That Council:

- 1. Hold a Public Hearing at the **2020 February 24** Combined Meeting of Council;
- 2. Give FIRST READING to **Proposed Bylaw 13P2020**, the proposed Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan:
- 3. WITHHOLD second and third readings of **Proposed Bylaw 13P2020** until Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan has been approved by the Calgary Metropolitan Region Board, then return to Council for SECOND and THIRD READING:
- 4. Direct Administration to submit the proposed Calgary–Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan to the Calgary Metropolitan Region Board for review; and
- 5. Direct Administration to complete any consequential amendments to the Belvedere Area Structure Plan and the Rocky View/Calgary Intermunicipal Development Plan and report back no later than Q4 2020.

Excerpt from the Minutes of the 2020 February 03 Combined Meeting of Council:

"Moved by Councillor Gondek

Seconded by Councillor Farrell

That pursuant to Section 17(3) of the Procedure Bylaw, 35M2017, as amended, the 2020 February 05 Standing Policy Committee on Planning and Urban Development be cancelled and the report, New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan POL2017-0012 (Ward 9), PUD2020-0047, be forwarded directly to the 2020 February 24 Combined Meeting of Council.

MOTION CARRIED"

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION / POLICY

On 2019 October 04, the vision, core ideas and some details of The Plan were shared with the Calgary-Chestermere Intermunicipal Committee which recommended that the Project Team proceed with the approval process.

At the 2019 June 17 Combined Meeting of Council, Council adopted Report IGA2019-0661 which included the following:

"Direct Administration to continue work on the Intermunicipal Interface Policy, in cooperation with The City of Chestermere, and to report back to Council through the SPC on Planning and Urban Development no later than Q1 2020."

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

At the 2019 May 27 Combined Meeting of Council, Council postponed Report IGA2019-0661 as follows:

"That the Agenda for today's Meeting be amended, by bringing forward and postponing Item 7.16 Update on the Calgary-Chestermere Intermunicipal Interface Policy Project at Range Road 284 – Municipal Boundary between The City of Calgary and The City of Chestermere (POL2017-0012), IGA2019-0661 to the 2019 June 17 Combined Meeting of Council."

At the 2019 February 04 Combined Meeting of Council, Council refereed Report C2019-0066 back to Administration as follows:

"That the Agenda for today's Meeting be amended, by bringing forward and referring Item 11.2.1, Report on Intermunicipal Interface Policy Plan at Range Road 284 – Municipal Boundary between The City of Calgary and The City of Chestermere (POL2017-0012), C2019-0066 to the Administration to work with their counterparts in Chestermere and for further consultation with stakeholders and to return to Council no later than 2019 Q2."

The Plan was included in the 2017, 2018 and 2019 Council-approved policy workplans. The project started in 2017 July, and during the policy work the Project Team provided regular joint updates to the Calgary-Chestermere Intermunicipal Committee. After an update to the Calgary-Chestermere Intermunicipal Committee at their 2018 December 07 meeting, committee members directed the Project Team to confirm the vision, timelines and implementation strategies with both councils.

BACKGROUND

Following annexations of lands from Rocky View County to Calgary in 2007 and Chestermere in 2009, the Interface Street became the common boundary between the two municipalities. A few years later, the Calgary-Chestermere Intermunicipal Committee directed staff from Calgary and Chestermere to complete a set of guidelines to guide development with intent of preventing a tunnel-like interface. The draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was completed in 2015 with intent of creating a vibrant and unique interface. Enforcing the MOU was challenging, and in 2017 it was decided by staff from Calgary and Chestermere, in coordination with the Calgary-Chestermere Intermunicipal Committee, that a statutory policy was appropriate.

Calgary and Chestermere started the policy work in 2017 and have jointly developed The Plan. The Technical Advisory Committee consisted of subject matter experts from both municipalities and was co-led by planners from each municipality (Project Team). The Plan is the result of cooperation, coordination and compromises made by the Project Team.

During the development of The Plan and between 2018 and 2019, five outline plans were approved for lands partially within the policy area (four in Chestermere and one in Calgary). The Plan, when approved, could inspire and encourage amendments to those approved outline plans (mostly to lot layout) to better align with the vision for the area. Amendments to approved outline plans are encouraged by the Project Team and are at the discretion of developers and landowners and could be implemented during future subdivision applications. Calgary and

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

Chestermere will work with developers and landowners who wish to consider amendments to their approved outline plans.

The Plan will be considered by Calgary and Chestermere councils. The Chestermere Council gave first reading to The Plan on 2020 January 21, with the purpose of scheduling the date for the public hearing and second reading. The public hearing and first reading with Calgary Council are scheduled for 2020 March 16. The public hearing and second reading with Chestermere Council are scheduled for 2020 March 17. By the end of March, The Plan will be submitted to the Calgary Metropolitan Regional Board for approval. Pending approval by the Calgary Metropolitan Regional Board, The Plan will return to Calgary and Chestermere councils for final readings.

Site Context

The plan area is approximately 102 hectares (252 acres). It extends 150 metres east and west of the Interface Street, measuring approximately 4.85 kilometres between the future alignments of 8 Avenue NE and Peigan Trail SE (see attachment 2). There are approximately 20 privately-owned titled parcels of varied sizes in the plan area. the majority of parcels are undeveloped and used for agricultural purposes although a private school/church, country residential cluster and a couple of parcels devoted to industrial/commercial uses are located in the plan area.

Natural features in the plan area include wetlands, natural drainage courses and a significant tree stand. A high-voltage power transmission line and its 40 metre right-of-way, and an abandoned sour gas pipeline are located to the south of 17 Avenue SE/Chestermere Boulevard.

INVESTIGATION: ALTERNATIVES AND ANALYSIS

The Plan refines and aligns the strategic objectives and policies of higher level plans and legislations as detailed in the Strategic Alignment section of this report. The Plan supports intermunicipal collaboration and coordination as well as guides development along the Interface Street. The Plan should be read in conjunction with municipal policies and plans.

Planning Considerations

Policy Overview

Policies found in The Plan support the long-term common vision for the area, which is that the plan area will become an attractive, unique, high-quality and vibrant residential corridor with three mixed-use Nodes and gathering areas near natural features. The plan area will offer a pleasant pedestrian experience and will be well connected for local and regional transportation by various travel modes.

The values and core ideas of The Plan are:

- Working together;
- Acknowledging uniqueness;
- Creating an attractive and active pedestrian experience;

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

- Creating vibrant mixed-use nodes;
- Creating a well-connected street; and
- Protecting and integrating nature.

The Plan has been structured to support the vision and the integration of the Interface Street with the regional networks. The Land Use Concept, Mobility, Open Space and Streetscape Element sections contain detailed policies to guide future development in the plan area, support the regional transportation network, protect natural features, encourage an environmentally conscious plan area and allow for a consistent and pleasant public realm.

The Intermunicipal Collaboration section includes high-level policies to support and guide further collaboration and coordination between the two municipalities and to guide forthcoming tasks (i.e. the completion of a functional study to define technical details for the Interface Street).

Land Use

The plan area is organized into three Character Areas: The Nodes, The Residential Corridor and The Transition. These Character Areas have unique characteristics and consistent land uses. The Plan includes general policies that apply to the plan area to allow for a consistent street layout, compatibility of uses along the Interface Street, to support all travel modes (walking, cycling, and driving) and protect natural features. The streetscape elements will enhance the pedestrian experience and visually unify the plan area.

As density targets, floor area ratio and land uses are defined differently in each municipality, the maximum building height is used to define the intensity of each Character Area.

Character Area 1: The Nodes

The Nodes are areas that contain higher intensity mixed-use development with at-grade active uses to enhance and support a pleasant pedestrian experience and foster social interaction in the plan area. These areas are expected to have wider sidewalks, publicly-accessible open spaces, be landscaped and integrate existing natural features in the overall design.

There are three Nodes in the plan area and they are located at major intersections of the Interface Street with the future alignment of Memorial Drive NE (The Gateway Node); 17 Avenue SE/Chestermere Boulevard (The Heart Node); and, the power transmission line and its right-of-way (The Greenway Node).

Character Area 2: The Residential Corridors

These areas are located between the Nodes and will primarily contain low-rise residential uses including detached, semi-detached, duplex, townhomes, rowhouses, secondary suites and livework units.

Character Area 3: The Transition

This area is located north of the Gateway Node and will allow for a smooth transition between the Interface Street and the planned interchange at Highway 1. This area will host single-use or mixed-use buildings including commercial and low-impact industrial uses.

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

Transportation Networks

North of the plan area and to support the regional mobility corridors, a full-interchange is planned at the intersection of Highway 1 and the Interface Street, yet full details are not yet available. The draft design and the planned location of this interchange shows that the Interface Street would jog west. Due to spacing requirements, some lands may become functionally isolated from their jurisdiction and The Plan includes high-level policies to address this potential challenge.

The Interface Street will serve as an important north-south corridor through Chestermere, Calgary and Rocky View County. It will serve as both a through route and a destination by providing safe and efficient mobility for through traffic, balanced community access and multi-modal connectivity needs of the adjacent neighbourhoods in Calgary and Chestermere.

The Interface Street is currently classified as an arterial street in Calgary and a regional connector in Chestermere. The Plan anticipates that the Interface Street will be a 36-metre-wide, four-lane divided street that will provide strong connections to adjacent land uses with potential for on-street parking and regular multi-modal access between both municipalities. To achieve the vision of The Plan and reflect the Interface Street's unique function, a modified street classification will be created through a future functional study. The timeline and funds for the study are currently unknown.

The Plan anticipates future construction, maintenance and operation of the Interface Street to be a shared responsibility between the two municipalities. The Plan provides guidance to develop agreements for the efficient staging and construction, maintenance and operations of the street. Upgrades and construction of the Interface Street would be funded and constructed by adjacent landowners in conjunction with their developments, as stated in current legislation.

Transit

The plan area is not currently serviced by transit. Future intermunicipal bus rapid transit (BRT) will run along 17 Avenue SE linking Calgary and Chestermere across the Interface Street. Calgary and Chestermere will explore opportunities for providing local transit routes to link to the BRT stations and the plan area, especially with the Nodes.

Environmental

An ecological inventory submitted with the Calgary's Belvedere Area Structure Plan, and Biophysical Impact Assessments submitted with outline plans in Calgary and Chestermere were reviewed and informed the policies included in The Plan. Available information identified several significant wetlands within or near the plan area, in addition to a drainage corridor which connects the wetlands, and a tree stand located in Chestermere.

The Plan strives for retention of these natural features and to incorporate them into the plan area design. The wetland at the corner of the Interface Street and 17 Avenue SE/Chestermere Boulevard is crown claimed and Calgary's wetland policy dictates that a 30m setback be protected around the water body bed and shore. It is intended that this wetland will become the key natural feature of the plan area.

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

Open Space Network

Open spaces in the plan area are intended to be inclusive, universally accessible, and provide natural, multi-seasonal passive recreation and gathering opportunities. Incorporating and linking natural features and pathways in both municipalities is an important objective for the open space network.

Utilities and Servicing

The intent of the servicing policies in The Plan is that both municipalities will work cooperatively to accommodate sanitary, water and stormwater easements and rights-of-way, and collaborate with each other on stormwater management solutions, when necessary.

Servicing for the plan area is covered under the existing Master Servicing Agreement (MSA) between Calgary and Chestermere. The MSA identifies the criteria around Calgary supplying potable water and providing wastewater treatment to Chestermere.

A portion of the plan area is within the City of Calgary's Belvedere Area Structure Plan (ASP) lands. The Belvedere ASP identifies a future servicing strategy for lands west of the Interface Street and identifies the studies and technical analysis that must be completed at land use amendment and outline plan stage.

Stormwater management of the plan area will be achieved through the construction of future stormwater ponds and trunks. Costs associated with water distribution, sanitary collection, and stormwater conveyance/treatment networks, will be borne by the developer. Calgary is a partner of the Cooperative Stormwater Management Initiative (CSMI), and post-development stormwater runoff generated by development in the plan area must align with the CSMI strategy.

Intermunicipal Collaboration

The Plan builds on existing agreements between Calgary and Chestermere regarding circulation of planning applications, and dispute resolutions. It also provides high-level policies to strengthen future collaboration and coordination between Calgary and Chestermere, and with other stakeholders when required.

In addition, The Plan provides guidance on matters required to support the vision for the area including the completion of forthcoming tasks such as the Interface Street naming, servicing, completion of a functional study to define technical details and final street alignment for the Interface Street, and others.

Growth Management

The Project Team acknowledge that utility and transportation capital infrastructure will be required to service the plan area. For Calgary the financial impact is unknown as this capital infrastructure is not included in the One Calgary 2019-2022 Service Plans and Budgets or in the current Off-site Levy Bylaw. A full financial analysis will be completed for The Plan at the time of business case submission to understand the financial impact of development to Calgary.

In the Belvedere ASP, Map 4: Growth and Management Overlay, the policy area is generally in the growth management overlay area, and growth management policies as approved by Council

Approval(s): Stuart Dalgleish concurs with this report. Author: L. Burga Ghersi

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

apply. In 2018 September 10, Calgary Council removed the growth management overlay to support growth in 14 new communities (Bylaw 70P2018) including portions of the plan area where the outline plan for the new community of TwinHills was approved in Q2 2019.

Calgary Planning Commission Review

On 2019 December 05, the Project Team presented The Plan to Calgary Planning Commission in a closed session. The Plan was presented for information and general feedback. Commission members provided valuable input and industry expertise which allowed the Project Team to make improvements to The Plan prior to going to committees and councils.

Comments from commission members include questions related to the approved outlines plans and their relation to The Plan; hierarchy of municipal policies; structure and diverse policy levels included in the plan; and maps and wording clarifications. Comments informed amendments to The Plan, where appropriate. A summary of the comments and suggestions from Commission members along with the Project Team's follow-up to each item is included in Attachment 3 of this report.

Chestermere Council Closed Session Review

On 2019 December 17, The Project Team presented The Plan through a closed session to Chestermere's Council for general feedback. This was done in place of a presentation to the Committee of the Whole (Chestermere review body), due to a scheduling conflict. Through this review, Chestermere Council had no suggested changes to The Plan.

Stakeholder Engagement, Research and Communication

Calgary and Chestermere Outreach

In keeping with Calgary Administration's standard practices, and in coordination with Chestermere, key stakeholders were engaged throughout the development of The Plan. In addition to internal stakeholders' engagement at both municipalities, the Project Team reached out to external stakeholders including landowners and developers in the plan area.

Initially, staff from Calgary and Chestermere had separate discussions with landowners and developers in each jurisdiction. However, to allow for consistency and efficiencies, the Project Team shifted to a more coordinated approach to engaging with stakeholders in early 2018. Calgary and Chestermere coordinated communications with all stakeholders, jointly organized meetings/ sessions with stakeholders, and together prepared/delivered presentations to committees and councils.

Four engagement sessions for developers and landowners happened throughout the policy work to present the project (2019 February), discuss the vision and core ideas (2019 May), communicate the policy approach and further discuss the vision (2019 September), and to discuss and request feedback on the draft document (2019 December). The Project Team also engaged via emails and meetings with other stakeholders, including the Province of Alberta, Rocky View County, and Altalink (as the owner of the power transmission line).

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

A project webpage was included in both municipalities' websites and it includes relevant background information, project timeline and details on stakeholders' sessions along with a copy of the proposed policy plan. Stakeholders including Rocky View County, The Province of Alberta and Altalink also received a copy of The Plan.

Comments received from stakeholders helped improve The Plan in areas such as: technical terms were replaced by common language; missing information was included in the maps; and location maps were revised. Stakeholders sought further information on the future studies and approval processes in both municipalities. They expressed that The Plan provides certainty for the plan area.

Strategic Alignment

The Plan is to be read in conjunction with the South Saskatchewan Regional Plan, and the Calgary Metropolitan Growth Plan. Within the Calgary context, the plan area is within the Rocky View County/City of Calgary Intermunicipal Development Plan and the Belvedere Area Structure Plan. Amendments to these plans might be needed and could be completed once The Plan is adopted by both councils.

Municipal Government Act

The Municipal Government Act (MGA) provides the legal framework for two neighbouring municipalities to create an Intermunicipal Development Plan which is ultimately approved by the respective councils.

In 2015, the MGA was amended to clarify that in the event of a conflict or inconsistency between an intermunicipal development plan and a municipal development plan, area structure plan or an area redevelopment plan, the intermunicipal development plan prevails to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency (section 638 of the MGA), and also that a municipal development plan must be consistent with any intermunicipal development plan with respect to land that is identified in both the municipal development plan and the intermunicipal development plan (section 632(4) of the MGA).

South Saskatchewan Regional Plan (2014)

The plan area is within the "City, Town" area as identified on Scheduled C: South Saskatchewan Regional Plan Map in the South Saskatchewan Regional Plan (SSRP). While the SSRP makes no specific reference to the plan area, The Plan is consistent with policies on Land Use Patterns.

Interim Calgary Metropolitan Region Growth Plan and the Interim Regional Evaluation Framework (2018)

The Calgary Metropolitan Region Board (CMRB) prepared and approved the Interim Calgary Metropolitan Growth Plan and the Interim Regional Evaluation Framework. The Interim Growth Plan provides planning direction and guidance on certain areas of regional significance related to population and employment growth, land use, infrastructure and services. The Plan builds on

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

the principles of the Interim Growth Plan by means of promoting efficient use of land, regional infrastructure and intermunicipal collaboration.

The Interim Regional Evaluation Framework provides municipalities with criteria to determine when new municipal statutory plans and amendments to existing statutory plans shall be submitted to the CMRB for approval. The Plan will be circulated to the CMRB following Calgary Council first reading and Chestermere Council second reading. After a decision by the CMRB is rendered, The Plan will return to Calgary Council for second and third reading and Chestermere council for third reading.

Rocky View County/City of Calgary Intermunicipal Development Plan (2012)

The plan area is also part of the Rocky View County/City of Calgary Intermunicipal Development Plan (IDP). This IDP requires mutual circulation of applications and coordination on Intermunicipal issues. Rocky View County has been a stakeholder during the policy work.

Municipal Development Plan (2009)

The plan area is generally located in the Municipal Development Plan (MDP) area identified as "Residential: Developing - Planned Greenfield Area with Area Structure Plan" which is characterized by low density residential uses, smaller pockets of multifamily and retail uses. Portions of the Intermunicipal Interface Policy area are in the "Residential: Developing - Future Greenfield" area. Areas along 17 Avenue SE are identified as an Urban Main Street which provide for high level of residential and employment intensification.

Belvedere Area Structure Plan (2009)

The three quarter sections extending north from 17 Avenue SE and one quarter section extending south from 17 Avenue SE are within the "Neighbourhood Area" as per the Belvedere Area Structure Plan (ASP). This area is intended primarily for residential uses. In addition, a portion of 17 Avenue SE is within an "Urban Corridor" area. This area is intended for high density, employment and local commercial uses.

Social, Environmental, Economic (external)

Social

The Plan will create a vibrant, diverse, inclusive, consistent and unique interface area between Calgary and Chestermere where all people can live, work and recreate. The vision seeks to provide opportunities for a wide range of housing types as well as enhancing the east/west pedestrian connections between both municipalities to foster cross-municipality social integration and connectivity.

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

Economic

The Plan seeks to create economic nodes strategically located at important intersections, where mixed-use development could support a live/work/play lifestyle which creates opportunities for local businesses to thrive.

Environmental

The Plan encourages the protection of natural features and their integration into the overall design. The Plan aims for public open spaces to be designed near the natural features to create destination points linked through the pathway system and sidewalks. Policies in The Plan encourage the use of renewable energy and stormwater best management practices. The Plan supports Calgary's Climate Resilience Strategy.

Financial Capacity

Current and Future Operating Budget:

There will be impacts to future operating budgets as development progresses. These impacts will be brought forward to Council as part of the comprehensive growth strategy and budget process.

Current and Future Capital Budget:

Future utility and transportation capital investment will be required to facilitate the buildout of The Plan. The future capital budget impact will be brought forward to Council as part of the comprehensive growth strategy and budget process.

One-time budget will be required to complete the studies identified in The Plan (i.e. Transportation Functional Study).

Risk Assessment

There is a risk that the vision for the area will not be fully realized if amendments to the approved outline plans are not considered. Calgary and Chestermere will work with developers and landowners to encourage changes or to allow for development that better align with the policies in The Plan.

There are no other risks associated with the adoption of The Plan as recommended.

REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S):

The Calgary–Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan reflects the collaborative and coordinated work between The City of Calgary and City of Chestermere, provides a long-term common vision and framework for development in the plan area and supports a vibrant, unique and active interface.

ATTACHMENT(S)

1. Proposed Bylaw 13P2020

ISC: UNRESTRICTED

Planning & Development Report to SPC on Planning and Urban Development 2020 February 05

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

- 2. Location Map of the Calgary—Chestermere Interface Plan Area
- 3. Calgary Planning Commission Review and Administration Follow-up
- 4. Public Submission

Tsuu Tina Trans Canada Highway (High Rocky View County 8 Av SE - Future Alignmen Future Memorial Dr Calgary Chestermere Peigan Tr SE - Extension Rocky View County Legend Calgary Municipal Boundary Chestermere Municipal Boundary

Location Map of the Calgary—Chestermere Interface Plan Area

Calgary Planning Commission Review - Administration Follow-up

Summary of CPC comments – 2019 December 5 – Closed session of CPC meeting

	CPC members comments		Administrations' Edits Administrations Follow-u		Administrations Follow-up
Ap a) b) c)	proved Outline Plans Do the approved outline plans need to conform with the Plan? What discussions have happened with developers How does one side of the street respond to the other side (lots backing onto the Interface Street)?			a) b)	The Plan, when approved will not apply to approved outline plans. However, Administrations hope that developers consider changes at future planning application stages to better align with the vision for the plan area. Administrations have had discussions with developers and landowners during the policy work. It has been acknowledged that The Plan offer long term opportunities. some lots, in the approved outline plans, side or back onto the Interface Street. Again, further discussion will happen at future planning stages to explore opportunities to better align with the vision for the plan
Hie a)	erarchy of Policies It is confusing where The Plan sits within the hierarchy of municipal policies. Unclear why The Plan includes high level policies as well as detailed policies?	a) b)	A graphic "Hierarchy of Legislation Plans and Policies" has been added to help clarify where the plan sits. The Plan includes high level policies to address intermunicipal collaboration and coordination, and detailed policies to allow for consistency in the plan area. Wording has been added to explain that.	a)	The Plan, as an Intermunicipal Plan, sits above policies and plans in Calgary and Chestermere.

Vision Vision is unclear. Why are we doing this? why should I go there? What is so unique about this interface? What is the goal of The Plan?	Wording revised throughout the document to make it easier to understand and to highlight the fact that this is a collaborative approach that seeks to create a unique and active interface between the two municipalities.	Calgary and Chestermere have jointly completed The Plan to support an attractive and pleasant interface. The Plan supports active development along the interface area and various travel modes and prevents the Interface Street to become a tunnel-like thoroughfare for vehicle and be an area where the two municipalities turn their backs onto each other.
Transportation Functional Study / road cross-section a) What is the road cross section? Why not include details? b) When is the transportation Functional Study going to be completed? c) What is the classification of the road?	a) A "Conceptual Interface Street Cross Section Sketch" has been added as an appendix. Also, wording has been added to link the Mobility section to the transportation Intermunicipal Collaboration section to clarify that the study is required to identify details and final alignment of the Interface Street.	b) At this time there is no funding assigned to complete the study, however both municipalities expect to jointly complete the study as soon as possible. c) The Interface Street will be a modified road classification, which will be identified as part of the Transportation Functional Study.
Maps 3, 4 and 5 do not clearly indicate what they are referring to.	New maps included	
wording a) Development should be compatible and "complementary"? b) Clarify what private amenity spaces refer to? c) Pathways should not run through natural features d) 3.3.3 should only apply where pathways are routed through an intersection.	 a) "complementary" removed b) Section 2.1.11 – "private amenity space" changed to "backyards" c) Section 3.3.2 "Pathways in the Plan Area should be routed through the Open Space" changed to "Pathways in the Plan Area should be integrated with the Open Space" 	

e) 6.4.11 why is the policy dictating action "shall" for Rocky View County and the Province	d) Added "located at intersections" e) Wording revised to emphasize that Rocky View Council and The Province are stakeholders and Calgary and Chestermere are the ones to action items.	
Why is a Natural Feature map not included? Not sure where the tree stand is located?	A "Conceptual Natural Feature Location Map" has been added as an appendix.	Due to lack of consistent information between the two municipalities, a natural feature map was not included in the initial draft.
Mid-block Crossing Is it possible and safe to have mid-block crossings at 60Km/h? why are we allowing/encouraging it?		Yes, mid-block crossing is possible, and we have some examples in Calgary. The mid-block crossing is planned at the intersection of the Power Transmission Line right-of-way and the Interface Street to facilitate pedestrian/bicycleusers movement.
Transit How does transit work here?		Local transit options may be considered along the Interface Street, further discussion between the two municipalities could happen at a later stage. Both municipalities are currently discussing transit along 17 Avenue S.E. / Chestermere Boulevard, those discussions are out of the scope of The Plan.
CMRB Is the plan going to the Calgary Metropolitan Region Board (CMRB)?		As a new statutory plan, The Plan will be sent to the CMRB for review and approval after respective readings by both councils.

From: Jaymal Ruparell <jaymalruparell@gmail.com>

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 9:31 AM Sent:

To: **Public Submissions**

Subject: [EXT] Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan (POL2017-0012) - Public

Hearing Bylaw 13P2020

Follow Up Flag: Follow up Flag Status: Flagged

The City of Calgary Office of the City Clerk P.O. Box 2100 Postal Station "M" Calgary, Alberta T2P 2M5

submitted via email: PublicSubmissions@calgary.ca

Reference: Bylaw13P2020

Due to inaccurate mailing address from the City of Calgary, some of my mail did not reach my address, and in another instance the mail received reached one day prior to the stakeholder meeting. Therefore I was only able to attend the 3rd, stakeholders schedule meeting. The 4th meeting scheduled four December 2019 is when I was on holidays and could not attend and had limited or no access to email, even to respond.

However, at the 3rd. stakeholder meeting that I attended, I expressed my viewpoint and suggested the node on my Southwest property be similar to the node south of 17th Avenue SE.

Having regards to above, it was a pleasure to talk to the Ms Lisette Ghersi, the planner for City of Calgary on February 14th.2020 and having read the Calgary-Chestermere interface inter-municipal development plan, I am in favour and supportive of this plan, subject to showing at the high-level document for map 2 page 17, the node in red to show similar length as indicated south of 17th Avenue SE. This red area is Character Area 1 and I understand that the nodes designed are for mixed-used development. Development outlined for character 2 are also acceptable under this classification (Node categorized as mixed-used). I also understand from this document that this conceptual plan which shows the red area for the node is not to scale and refinements can be done without amendments which is noted on page 13 of this document.

However, since this is the original document, it would give me as stack-holder more comfort to see the red area from visual point of view showing the same size in length at Southwest of my property to that as indicated south of 17th Avenue SE. I would agree that the wording for future development requirement for any amendments as stated in the document remain as is, since alteration to wording does not affect the request change that I am making to this document.

This minor adjustment to map 2 on page 16 does not conflict and is consistent with the vision, values and the core ideas as portrayed in this document and my conversation with the city planner. I have understood from the planner that any changes to this document can now only be done by the Calgary City council and I respectfully request Calgary Council to make this minor change to map 2 on page 16 and wherever it is reproduced in the document. I would also like to note that I can only speak with respect to my lands which are situated in City of Calgary and am unable to speak on behalf of Chestermere side of the road but I understand Council of City of Chestermere will be meeting in March 2020 to deal with this matter.

I further request Council to also not restrict Building height in this node to four stories and page 21 of this document refers to three nodes namely the Heart node, the Gateway node in the Greenway node. if restrictions in this high-level document is inserted then there should be consistency within the nodes. The heart node with a 10-story restriction and I submit if restriction is required the Gateway node and Greenway node be consistent to minimum six stories at the very least. I would note that character 2 has a 3-story and submit that no node be restricted less than 6 stories. This would be still be consistent with the vision, values and core ideas as stated in this document.

With these two changes, I'm in support of this high-level documents.

Respectfully Submitted,
Jaymal Ruparell
President
RJR Enterprises Ltd.
(Stack-Holder)
email:jaymalruparell@gmail.com

CITY OF CALGARY RECEIVED IN COUNCIL CHAMBER

FEB 2 4 2020

Page 4 of 12 Item # 8.2.1

SPC on Planning and Urban Development 8.2.1 Pupzozo-004 **Planning & Development Report to** 2020 February 05

CITY CLERK'S DEPARTMENT

SC: UNRESTRICTED PUD2020-0047

New Policy: Calgary-Chestermere Interface Intermunicipal Development Plan, POL2017-0012 (Ward 9)

Chestermere will work with developers and landowners who wish to consider amendments to their approved outline plans.

The Plan will be considered by Calgary and Chestermere councils. The Chestermere Council gave first reading to The Plan on 2020 January 21, with the purpose of scheduling the date for the public hearing and second reading. The public hearing and first reading with Calgary Council was scheduled for 2020 March 16. The public hearing and second reading with Chestermere Council was scheduled for 2020 March 17. However, those dates changed due to the following:

At the Calgary Combined meeting of Council on 2020 February 03, the 2020 February 05 SPC on Planning and Urban Development (PUD) meeting was cancelled due to lack of quorum. At that meeting, The Plan was forwarded directly to the 2020 February 24 Combined Meeting of Council. Consequently, Chestermere Council changed its Council date to 2020 March 03.

Following first reading at Calgary Council and second reading at Chestermere Council, The Plan will be submitted to the Calgary Metropolitan Regional Board for approval. Pending approval by the Calgary Metropolitan Regional Board, The Plan will return to Calgary and Chestermere councils for final readings.

Site Context

The plan area is approximately 102 hectares (252 acres). It extends 150 metres east and west of the Interface Street, measuring approximately 4.85 kilometres between the future alignments of 8 Avenue NE and Peigan Trail SE (see attachment 2). There are approximately 20 privatelyowned titled parcels of varied sizes in the plan area, the majority of parcels are undeveloped and used for agricultural purposes although a private school/church, country residential cluster and a couple of parcels devoted to industrial/commercial uses are located in the plan area.

Natural features in the plan area include wetlands, natural drainage courses and a significant tree stand. A high-voltage power transmission line and its 40 metre right-of-way, and an abandoned sour gas pipeline are located to the south of 17 Avenue SE/Chestermere Boulevard.

INVESTIGATION: ALTERNATIVES AND ANALYSIS

The Plan refines and aligns the strategic objectives and policies of higher level plans and legislations as detailed in the Strategic Alignment section of this report. The Plan supports intermunicipal collaboration and coordination as well as guides development along the Interface Street. The Plan should be read in conjunction with municipal policies and plans.

Planning Considerations

Policy Overview

Policies found in The Plan support the long-term common vision for the area, which is that the plan area will become an attractive, unique, high-quality and vibrant residential corridor with

Approval(s): Stuart Dalgleish concurs with this report. Author: L. Burga Ghersi

City Clerks: J. Palaschuk